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         ADATA.002      PART TWO OF LEONARDO ANDREA COLLECTION ON THE
         WOODWARD FAMILY OF SOUTH CAROLINA WITH ADDITIONAL COMMENTS BY
         ROBERT HILL SR. (CONTINUED FROM ADATA.001).

         85          WOODWARD DATA FROM MARYLAND.
           At the University (of S.C.) Library here, I ran into the 8-
         Vols on Calender of Wills in Maryland by Miss Baldwin...I
         took time and abstracted what data I thought might help on
         Woodward.

         86          LONDON, ENGLAND.
           Mrs. SARAH WOODWARD....Her Will signed 25 April 1734,
         probated 11 Sept. 1734....Children.
         William Woodward & Ex.       Sarah Holmes, w widow & Ex.
         Amos Woodward in Maryland    Sarah, w. of Cornelius Rehowne
                                      Elizabeth, w. of Benjamin Barren
         also to
         Amos Garrett, brother in Maryland...Deceased and to his heirs
         Elizabeth Gunn (?) sister....And others in will /Wit.  John
         Welles, Thomas Foxley & Edward Grubb.

         The son Amos Woodward was a resident of Annapolis, Md.

         87             ST MARY COUNTY MARYLAND.
           HENRY SPINK in a will signed 6 Feb. 1733 names one legatee
         as HARRIET WOODWARD, my sister.

         88             ST MARY COUNTY MARYLAND.
           ABRAHAM WOODWARD was witness to the will of John Guther,
         signed 4 May 1739...No other time does Abraham Woodward show
         in the Index to any of the 8-Vols.

         89             ST MARY COUNTY MARYLAND.
           JOSHUA GUIBERT....His will signed 10 Nov. 1743, probated 1
         Dec. 1743, Wife..Jane Guibert & Ex.  Children:
         MARY WOODWARD            Susannah Good
         Anne Guibert             Elizabeth Guibert
         Joshua Guibert Jr.
         Mentions two grandchildren as Luke Woodward & Joseph
         Woodward.  /Wit. John Guibert, Martha Guibert & James
         Dickson.

         90             CHARLES COUNTY MARYLAND.
           JOHN WOODWARD....His will signed 5 April 1743, probated 23
         June 1743. Wife, "My beloved" & Ex. (Name not given).
         Children and no surname used.
         Henry      Elizabeth
         Mary       James
         Mentions but not by name "Stepson."
         /Wit. Robert Cabot, James Gray, William Nelson, Dr. Vahn &
         William Story.

         91             FAIRFIELD COUNTY S.C. (From my Perry Files)
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           Joseph Perry...His estate admst. 15 Feb. 1836 by his widow,
         Jane Perry and her bond signed by David B. Kirkland..The
         estate was appraised by John Rabb...Isaac Lowe..Thomas W.
         Rawls.  Four children and all under age of 14 years:
         Mary Ann Perry      John F. Perry
         Elizabeth F. Perry  Joseph H. Perry
              Division of Estate in Fall Court 1840.
         Same four children....The widow, Jane Perry was now the wife
         of WILLIAM WOODWARD.

         92             ST MARY COUNTY MARYLAND.
           JOHN WATER...Will signed 26 Feb. 1692, No probate date
         given, Wife was Penelope Water & Ex....MY SEVEN
         CHILDREN..only six named:  James, Joseph, Lewis, Thomas,
         William, John. /Wit. John Dent, John Harrison & George
         Dimond.

         93       WOODWARD-WATERS  of MARYLAND.
           JOHN WATERS....Will signed 2 March 1707, probated 15 June
         1708.  Wife not given by first name...Children:
         John Waters Jr.          William Waters
         Edmund Waters            Sarah Waters...minor
         Exs: Brothers, William & Richard Waters with my father-in-
         Law, Lazarus...Cousin, Arthur Denwood.
         /Wit. William Puesy, John Brown & William Tull.

         NOTE BY ROBERT HILL Sr:  Andrea was obviously trying to follow
         up on the stories that were (wrongly) circulated that Thomas
         Woodward (son of Abraham) and who married the widow Margaret
         Waters Ijams were the parents of Thomas (Regulator)
         Woodward...which we now know was not the case.

         94             ANN ARUNDEL COUNTY MARYLAND.
           JOHN WATTORS....Will signed 27 November 1703, probated 13
         June 1704...Wife was Elizabeth Wattors...Children and all
         minors:
         Mary Wattors          Samuel Wattors
         John Wattors          Margaret Wattors
         William Wattors       * One in Pregnant wife
         Ex. Brother-In-Law, John Giles with wife.
         /Wit. William Cole, Margaret Steward, Grad Hopkins, William
         Richardson & John Giles.
         * Codicil named this child as Joseph Wattors.
         Some indications that the daughter, Margaret wed a Mr. Ijous.
         I can check further on this.

         95             ST MARY COUNTY Md. (Popular Hill)
           THOMAS WOODWARD....Will signed 27 April 1717...no probate
         date, Wife named as Rachel Woodward & Ex.  Children:
         Johanna Woodward    Mary Woodward.
         /Wit. John Hammond, Samuel Johnson & Barham Nosly or Mosby.

         96             ST MARY COUNTY (MARYLAND)
           MRS FRANCES CRITCHETT nee Watkins....Her will signed 3
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         April 1718...Husband, William Critchett...No children
         mentioned. Two grand children listed as:
         James, son of Henry Harris
         ANN, daughter of JOHN WOODWARD.
         Did Not check fully...Andrea

         97             SOMERSET (COUNTY MD.)
           RICHARD WATERS (Brother of # 93)....Will signed 21 April
         1720, probated 12July 1720...Wife, Eliza Water & Ex.
         Children:
         William Waters & Ex.       Richard Waters Jr.
         Littleton Waters.
         Other Exs. Brother, William Waters, and nephew John Waters.
         /Wit. John Brown, William Pearson & Richard Harper.

         98             ST MARY COUNTY (MD.)
           JOHN WATERS....Will signed 2 Feb. 1719, probated 28 Feb.
         1719. No wife is listed and likely dead...Children and
         minors:
         Margaret Water           Anne Waters
         John Waters              James Waters  Ex. Edward King
         /Wit. James King & Thomas Asquith

         99             CALVARET COUNTY MARYLAND
           ELIZABETH, widow of FRANCIS HUTCHEONS...Will signed 16 Oct.
         1740, probated 25 Oct. 1740...Children:
         Richard Hutcheons        Elizabeth Hutcheons
         Exs: Sister SARAH WATERS and LITTLETON WATERS, Brother in Law
         /Wit. Henry Lowes, Esther Lowes & Rebecca Cathline.

         100            SOMERSET COUNTY MD. (WOODWARD)
            WILLIAM WATERS, son of Richard Waters, deceased (# 97) his
         Will signed 9 June 1732, probated 10 March 1732, Wife named
         as Abigail Waters, Children and all minors:
         Richard Waters      Elizabeth Waters

         Others named in Will: Elizabeth Waters, my mother; Sarah
         Waters, my sister; Littleton Waters, my brother & Ex. /Wit.
         Charles Hall, John Henston & Boaz Walston.

         101            CHARLES COUNTY MARYLAND
           JAMES WATERS....Will signed 3 October 1740, probated 21
         Feb. 1741. Wife, Elizabeth Waters.  Children:
         William Waters           Catherine Waters
         If children die before maturity...then to Peter Garrett Sr.
         and to his son, Peter Garrett Jr...."If my children depart
         from Catholic Faith, the estate to nearest of Waters kin who
         are Catholic."
         Exs: Ignatius Doyne & John Eassam. /Wit. Joshua Wilson,
         Matthew Marton & Luke Scantling.

         101-a
            Several of the Waters state to rear children as Catholics
         but James is first to disinherit them if they turn
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         Protestant.

         101-b
            I checked this to find the Margaret Waters, who was
         mother of Thomas Woodward, The Regulator of Fairfield County,
         S.C.

         NOTE BY ROBERT HILL Sr:  I knew in my mind that was what Andrea
         was searching for BUT SHE WAS NOT HIS MOTHER....The story
         that was widely accepted was that she was the FIRST WIFE of
         the Regulator's Father, THOMAS WOODWARD, who did marry
         Margaret (Waters) Izams (Ijams)...BUT THIS TOO IS AN
         ERROR...THAT THOMAS WAS BORN, MARRIED, & DIED WAY TOO LATE TO
         HAVE BEEN FATHER OF REGULATOR.

         102            FAIRFIELD COUNTY S.C.
           On the road from Ridgeway to Winnsboro, I stopped at an Old
         WOODWARD graveyard...It is surrounded by a large rock wall.
         Vandals have removed and broken many stones...I copied all
         that were legible except I did not copy the several GADSDEN
         grave stones in this cemetery.

         WILLIAM WOODWARD/ 7 April 1792/ 15 Aug. 1842
         HARRIET/ wife of/ William Woodward/ Died 12 May 1857/ aged 50
         years...(See # 84 as nee Harriet Smart.

         THOMAS WOODWARD/ THE REGULATOR/ Killed by British & Tories/
         12 May 1779....This is a handsome upright marker.

         JOHN WOODWARD DURHAM /Died 20 Jan. 1858/ In his 51st Year.
         Two other built up rock tombs...Vandals have removed the top
         stones with inscriptions...Likely Osmund & wife Martha.
         Next to these are five similar tombs...One of the marker has
         been stolen....two not legible...Two I deciphered.

         JOHN OSMOND (WOODWARD)/ Son of O. & M. WOODWARD/ Died 7 Jan
         1825  Aged 3 years, 6 mos. & 5 days.
         WILLIAM STROTHER (WOODWARD)/ Son of O. & M. WOODWARD/ Died 16
         Oct. 1825/ Aged 5 mos. & 10 days.

         The other two with stones were also children of Osmond &
         Martha Woodward...One other in this row had stone stolen.
         Graves by Thomas Woodward, The Regulator, and if these ever
         had any stones, they have been taken or destroyed by
         vandals...I imagine some of these graves were wife or wives.
         In next row and not in line with children of Osmond & Martha
         are two rock tombs of grown persons...Marble tops have been
         turned upside down by vandals...I was unable to lift these to
         return and read the inscriptions.
         Several marked graves but all of GADSDENS...They may have
         been related to Woodward...Many Gadsden stones are much
         later.

                        FAIRFIELD CO., S.C.
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         The number at top are File Numbers if an estate or an Equity
         or if as B-31 indicates (DEED BOOK B, Page 31).

         102-a
            I went over the old MT. ZION PRESBYTERIAN CEMETERY and
         found no Woodward markers there in Winnsboro...I went to the
         old Baptist Cemetery and found one which has a Woodward in
         the middle name..
           WILLIAM WOODWARD WILLINGHAM/ 30 Mar. 1818/20 Mar. 1874

         102-b
            The old Woodward Baptist Church along the Fairfield-
         Chester County Line had no Woodward...One grave stone had
         middle name as John Woodward Durham/ 20 July 1839/ 29 Sept.
         1881
                his wife
         Mary Wagner Mobley/ 27 Aug. 1842/ 21 Jan. 1904
         Elizabeth/ Wife of Jones Taylor/ Died 7 Mar. 1839/ Age 26.

         102-c
            At Winnsboro it began to rain and we could not visit the
         old Associate Reform Presbyterian...The Methodist.. or the
         Episcopal cemeteries to try to locate Woodward grave stones.

         NOTE BY ROBERT HILL Sr:  The grave of Nancy Elizabeth Barrett,
         who was the wife of Reverend William Woodward, son of the
         Regulator, is located in the ASHFORD CEMETERY near Winnsboro,
         in Fairfield Co., S.C.  The marker reads:
         "Sacred to the memory of Nancy Woodward, relict of the late
         Reverend William Woodward, who departed this life August
         10th, 1829, Age 62 years. (born 1767).  (Note by Robert Hill:
         This was my 4th great grandmother).

         IN THE OLD WOODWARD GRAVEYARD, NEAR LITTLE RIVER (EAST FORK)
         in Avon Section of (todays) FAIRFIELD COUNTY....are the
         following graves...

         "Sacred to the Memory of NANCY WOODWARD, who died August 21,
         1831 in the 21st year of her age." (Broken down vault). (Her
         birth ca. 1810).

         "Sacred to the Memory of GEORGE WOODWARD, who departed this
         life September 26, 1811, in the 35th year of his age." (Born
         1776).

         His wife Elizabeth Woodward, who died December 16, 1830, in
         the 53rd year of her age." (born 1777).  Both of these
         inscription were on one slab of a vault, which was broken up.

         This George Woodward may be part of the family of # 57.

         103  (FAIRFIELD CO.) 35-577 (BOOK 35, PAGE 577) ....See # 54
            JOHN WOODWARD will was proved 24 March 1824...Many of the
         children were minors...The Estate was appraised by James
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         McCravey..Silas Gladden, Elijah Gayden...In the WPA will in
         # 54, I left out one child: Esther or Easter WOODWARD.

         There is a large sale list and many buyers by name of
         Woodward and of Strother and Williamson...The wife was a
         daughter of Roling Williamson # 83 as shown by his
         estate...Never in any dower did this John Woodward ever have
         a wife named PATSY...I think the Patesy Axham in # 4 is an
         error as wife of this man...Also in the Roling Williamson
         file, Osmond Woodward, brother of this John, wed a sister
         Ailey Williamson...Her name was Martha Williamson...I can
         examine this estate further if needed.  (This was part of the
         Regluator's family).

         104            EQUITY 1817-4 ?
           BURBAGE WOODWARD (See # 18-e) VS. James Davis....Filed 20
         Nov. 1807....JOHN WOODWARD died in 1797 and he is the father
         of your petitioner, Burbage Woodward...His father John
         Woodward in his life time bought a plantation of land from
         Edmund Watts (Once as Edward Watts) and lived there and was
         living there when he died in 1797, and at the death of John
         Woodward, the land passed to his son, Burbage Woodward. James
         Davis claims this land was deeded to him and therefore claims
         the land...Suit won by Burbage Woodward....  Now this Burbage
         Woodward had a son named Burbage Woodward Jr.

         104-a
            This JOHN WOODWARD had a wife named Patsey as shown by a
         deed...I was unable to find the estate of this JOHN WOODWARD
         (See him in # 18-e)...I will have to have a lot more time to
         check Fairfield and then perhaps in adjoining counties in
         order to unravel all these Woodward ramifications.
         (This was the Regulator's family)

         105            WHAT DID I PROVE
           Mrs. Bogges....Mrs. Johnson....Mrs. Julian....ALL descend
         from a common WOODWARD ancestor....So far I have not located
         this elusive man...Each of you can decide whether you want to
         spend enough money for about a week of work...It will take
         that long to unravel it all.
                                     Andrea

         106  FAIRFIELD COUNTY S.C.  FILE 33-530...(See # 52)
           RICHARD WOODWARD...His estate was appraised by Edward Watts
         (See # 104) Stephen Nowlen & Hugh Aiken...The Estate and will
         was probated and executed by his friends, George & Richard
         Woodward...No list of heirs in file save...widow, Anne
         Woodward; and youngest child James Woodward.

         From the file he had several children...I think that by deeds
         and Equity, I may be able to find all his children...I did
         not have time on this trip.

         107       II-367 (BOOK II-PAGE 367) ...not Richard # 106
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           RICHARD WOODWARD...A deed for love & affection to my SONS
         and dated 21 March 1829:
         George Woodward   &   Richard Woodward Jr.
         112 acres of land situate on the Columbia Road being part of
         a grant to Richard Woodward Sr. that passed to his son,
         Richard Woodward (NOW SR.) /Wit. Robert Bell & Andrew Bell.

         107-a
           This Richard is likely son of Richard  # 106.

         108                 LL-3 (BOOK LL-PAGE 3)
           JOHN J. WOODWARD in this deed as in scores of other deeds
         was COMMISSIONER OF EQUITY for Winnsboro of Fairfield
         District (County).

         109                 96-1056 (BOOK 96-PAGE 1056)
            ISAAC WOODWARD....His estate was Admst. 24 Oct. 1831 by
         Joseph Woodward and his bond was signed by Randol Woodward
         Sr. and by Randol Woodward Jr....Administered by consent of
         the widow, Mrs. Priscilla Woodward...Estate was appraised by
         Jacob Feaster Jr., Randolph Woodward, James Cameron, Richard
         C. Woodward, Robert D.A. Thorp....Division of Estate was made
         5 Jan. 1835...Widow Mrs. Priscilla Woodward...children:
         Daniel Y. Woodward....minor & mother guardian
         Isaac H. Woodward.....minor & mother guardian
         James P. Woodward.....He was a minor and mother guardian

         23 March 1839 Elijah Eubanks of Union Co., S.C. was named as
         the legal guardian of James P. Woodward, still a minor...The
         other two sons were then of age....The widow Priscilla
         Woodward was then wife of Elijah Eubanks, Cross Key Post
         Office, Union District S.C.  also Elijah Eubanks and his wife
         Priscilla Woodward Eubanks 28th December 1842 and of Union
         District S.C.....Pay $ 280 to MARY WOODWARD of Fairfield
         District, S.C.....a Note which May (Mary?) had incurred when
         she took care of the sons of Isaac Woodward, deceased.

         110             HH-45 (BOOK HH, PAGE 45)
           RANDOLPH WOODWARD (Often as Randol) SR.....A deed signed 18
         Feb. 1830...A tract or plantation of land in Fairfield TO MY
         SONS
         Randolph Woodward Jr.         Joseph Woodward
         Isaac Woodward   (SEE #109)
         Plantation of land which was an original grant to JOHN BELL
         and lying between lands of Isaac Woodward, Richard Woodward,
         heirs of William Woodward. /Wit....Forgot to check the names.

         110-a
           Definitely each of the clients is in some way closely
         related to this RANDOLPH WOODWARD SR. (I did not find his
         estate in Winnsboro)...Also to the Bell Family...also to the
         Aiken Family.
         * ISAAC WOODWARD # 109, when he died in 1801 had an interest
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         in this plantation of land....The Watts Family also mix in
         with your set of Woodwards...See # 104 where the John
         Woodward died  1797 owned Edward Watts land.

                        FAIRFIELD COUNTY S.C.
         111       33-530 (FILE 33, PAGE 530)...(SEE # 51) ???)
           JOHN WOODWARD, FILE for his wife Easther (Also Easter in
         will) as MRS. ESTHER WOODWARD...Her estate was appraised by
         William Simpson Aaron Trapp, William James, Roling
         Williamson, Hinson Keit....Division of her estate to:
         Osmond Woodward...a son m. Martha Williamson
         Sarah, wife of William Strother, a daughter
         Mary Ann Collins, wife of Thomas Lyles, a daughter
         John Woodward, a son...m. Ailey Williamson
         John Woodward Durham, grandson..a full share in right of his
                               deceased mother, Cynthia Durham.
         William Thomas Woodward, a son.
         Legacy paid to Miss Elise Eliza Hagood
         Legacy paid to Mrs. Nancy Henderson, a sister..willed to her
         Legacy paid to Ranson Lyles, a grandson...willed to him.
         111-a
           Practically same file of her husband, John Woodward and
         same heirs as in will # 111 save some grandchildren had
         legacies willed to them as follows:
         John Woodward, grandson       Osmond Woodward, grandson
         Wm. T. Woodward, grandson     Wm. Strother Lyles, grandson
         John Dargan Strother, ""      John W. Durham, grandson
         This clears all heirs in this estate or rather these estates.

         NOTE BY ROBERT HILL Sr:  This Esther Woodward, was the wife of
         JOHN WOODWARD, the oldest child of Thomas (Regulator)
         Woodward & his 1st wife Jemima Collins.

         112             SEE # 48
           MRS. ELIZABETH WOODWARD...Nothing in her files except the
         Will and no list of heirs.

         112-a
           More papers may show in other files...In Fairfield County
         many papers from other files were woefully mixed ca. 1910 by
         a drunken lawyer, Scion of a first family of Winnsboro...He
         miss laid many papers...Others he mixed hither and yon...
         Several years ago I worked a D.A.R. Line for a lady in
         Mississippi and in file of her ancestor, JOHN MURFF, I found
         inventory and receipts from heirs..Mention was made of the
         Administration but I was never able to find the bond or the
         sale list or other data.  While at work on Woodward, I found
         these missing papers tucked in a file which did not remotely
         concern the man...I also found on this trip some other papers
         in a file which did not belong there...Almost every time I
         work in Winnsboro, I find papers tucked in wrong
         files...Eventually the papers on Mrs. Elizabeth Woodward may
         show up in some other file.
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         113
           THOMAS McMILLAN...His estate...I did not take the dates of
         Administration..Division made 11 Aug. 1821.
         Widow, Elizabeth McMillan
         Morris McMillan, son
         John McMillan, son
         Mary, wife of John Cockrell, daughter

         Many papers of this file were in another file for MORRIS
         McMILLAN, the son...He died a bachelor and his estate was
         divided 1 Jan. 1826...Heirs were his mother and his brother &
         sister above.

         114            A-477  (BOOK A, PAGE 477??)
           Miss ELIZABETH WOODWARD, spinster, a deed signed 22 Sept.
         1780 to Thomas May...300 acres of land willed to me by
         deceased father, THOMAS WOODWARD and a original grant to him
         on Mill Creek and part of an original grant to Robert Stark,
         /Wit. James Nelson and John Woodward...I do not think this is
         the same THOMAS WOODWARD # 42...This Elizabeth signs this
         deed 22 Sept. 1780....Thomas # 42 signed his will 31 October
         1780 HOWEVER Thomas # 42 owned a lot of land in Fairfield
         County.

         114-a This MISS ELIZABETH WOODWARD is likely the ELIZABETH
         McMORRIES in Will 3 48.

         NOTE BY ROBERT HILL Sr: Andrea was right...This is the family of
         THOMAS (REGULATOR) WOODWARD...and Elizabeth was his daughter
         by that name. Her mother was the 2nd wife of the Regulator,
         Elizabeth Stokes May.  Note this woman signed spinster BUT
         she later married William McMorries.

         114-b          PROVED BY # 114
             THOMAS WOODWARD, The Regulator, left a will...Question is
         where is the will?  Since he died in 1779, the will can be in
         any of the old county seats of Old Craven District or else in
         Charleston...This will help solve some Woodward problems.

         NOTE BY ROBERT HILL Sr:  Andrea was right...there obviously was
         a will, based on the statement made by Elizabeth Woodward in
         Item # 114 when she says "300 acres of land WILLED to me by
         my deceased father, THOMAS WOODWARD" but the will has never
         been found.

         115                 A-477  (BOOK A, PAGE 477??)
           THOMAS WOODWARD (His X Mark) ...A deed signed 10 Jan. 1778
         to Robert Rabb...350 acres of land on Mill Creek, which was
         an original grant to Samuel Elliott, who sold it to Robert
         Stark (See # 114) who then sold it to me and adjacent to the
         land of Thomas Rutland, Paul Rennet, Robert Stark. /Wit.
         Jacob Gibson, William Robertson & John Woodward....Recorded
         in 1785.



file:///C|/Users/Owner/Documents/Genie/genieTexts/ADATA002.TXT[7/20/2010 9:20:02 PM]

         116                 N-8  (BOOK N, PAGE 8 ??)
           THOMAS WOODWARD (His X mark) of Craven County...A deed
         signed 4 Aug. 1780 to Phillip Raiford...Dower by his wife,
         Elizabeth Woodward. /Wit. William Sanders & Thomas
         May...Since the Regulator was dead in 1779, this is Thomas
         Woodward named in # 42.

         116-a
           The two sets of children of Thomas, the Regulator, and of
         the Thomas # 42 were both in Fairfield...Likely John in # 104
         is son of Thomas # 42...Also Priscilla in # 109 may be a
         daughter of # 42.

         NOTE BY ROBERT HILL Sr: Andrea is right about the Regulator
         being dead BUT the name of Phillip Raiford, John May, John
         Woodward were also names of people connected to the
         Regulator's family...Was it possible that this was a
         transaction between the TWO different Woodward families?

         117                 A-453 (BOOK A, PAGE 453)
           Joseph Kirkland...A deed signed 7 Jan. 1786 to HENRY
         WOODWARD, 300 acres of land originally granted to Joseph
         Kirkland. /Wit. William Roach & John James.

         118                 A-98  (BOOK A, PAGE 98??)
           JOHN WOODWARD  (See # 104) A deed signed 5 Nov. 1790 to his
         son, BURBAGE WOODWARD....Gift all of my cattle, Horses,
         Negroes, Farming Implements...etc../Wit. Usham Fair & Edward
         Watts Sr.

         119                 L-224 (BOOK L, PAGE 224??)
           JOSEPH WOODWARD, Gentlemen, a deed signed 20 Dec. 1796 to
         William Strother, 151 acres land granted to Major Pierce
         Butler and adjacent to the lands of James Hendricks, John
         Woodward, Col. Joseph Kirkland & Samuel Gutan. /(Wit.?) John
         Woodward, Samuel B. Nelson & James Hendricks.

         120          34-552 (FILE #34, PAGE 552)....See # 57
           GEORGE WOODWARD....His estate was Admst. 19 Oct. 1814 by
         William Woodward & John Woodward (Seemingly his brothers) and
         their bond was signed by RANDOL WOODWARD (See # 110) and
         Richard Woodward...The widow was ELIZABETH WOODWARD and she
         received from the estate her DOWER of one-third the estate.
         RANDOL WOODWARD (Randolph) figures heavily in this estate and
         he is a kinsman (likely a brother)...BUYERS at the Sale:
         Mrs. Elizabeth Woodward       James Stevenson
         Isaac Lowe                    Samuel Clark
         Richard Woodward              George Noland
         William Woodward              James Woodward
         Samuel Taylor                 John Aiken
         Joseph Evans                  William Robertson
         Randol Woodward Sr.           Edward Watts
         Samuel McMullan               Hugh Aiken and others.
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         The widow Elizabeth Woodward bought most of the estate..
         Mention is made of an Equity for division of the land...I
         will have to locate this.

                     FAIRFIELD COUNTY WOODWARDS
         120-a
            Estate of GEORGE WOODWARD, division (made) 16 Aug. 1816.
         The widow, ELIZABETH WOODWARD...one Third...Rest to children:
         Nathaniel Woodward           Isaac Woodward
         Margaret Woodward            Jennet (Jane) Woodward
         Elizabeth (Betsy) Woodward   Nancy Woodward
         George Woodward
         Some of these children, in fact all, were minors...Their
         mother, Elizabeth Woodward, was their guardian.

         121            69-1052 (FILE 69-PAGE 1052)
           MRS. ELIZABETH WOODWARD...Her Estate was administered 19
         Dec. 1830 by Charles Bell and Nathaniel Woodward. The Bond
         was signed by Nathaniel Woodward & John Rogers. The Estate
         was appraised by Thomas Lauderdale, Robert Bankhead, William
         Hamilton & Richard C. Woodward. Buyers at the Sale were:
         Isaac C. Woodward        Richard C. Woodward
         George Woodward          Miss Margaret Woodward
         Charles Bell             ANDREW HANNA
         RICHARD MORGAN           Andrew Pitcrew
         John Rogers              JAMES MORGAN
         Division of estate made 1 Jan. 1833...Heirs were:
         Nathaniel Woodward          Margaret, wife of Charnal James
         Nancy, wife of James Morgan Isaac Woodward
         Nancy Woodward..also as Agnes Woodward & George Woodward.

         George Woodward was a minor and his guardian was Charles Bell
         and his guardianship bond was signed by Robert Bell & Hugh
         Barkley. Later Charles Bell resigns as guardian and NATHANIEL
         WOODWARD took over a guardian, for George Woodward, a minor.

         121-b
           There was a payment for tombstone for Mrs. Elizabeth
         Woodward and for her deceased husband (His name not listed)
         and I have reason to think her deceased husband was GEORGE
         WOODWARD listed in # 120.

         NOTE BY ROBERT HILL Sr: Perhaps it is the George Woodward who's
         grave is listed in # 102.

         121-c             IN SAME FILE
           MISS AGNES or otherwise called NANCY WOODWARD died 19 April
         1832...Her estate was continued with Charles Bell as the
         Admst. Division of the estate of Miss NANCY WOODWARD made 1
         Jan. 1833 and to her brothers & sisters.
         Nathaniel Woodward            Isaac Woodward
         Isaac Woodward                Margaret w. of Charnal James
         George Woodward (minor)       Nancy w. of James Morgan
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         Paid George Brown for making a tombstone for Nancy Woodward
         and paid JOHN JOHNSTON for building the tomb and placing the
         tombstone.

         121-d
           If we could find all these tombstones, we will make some
         headway on this set of children of Elizabeth Woodward.

         121-e
           This list of children of MRS. ELIZABETH WOODWARD nearly
         TALLY with the children of George Woodward (# 120-a), but not
         exactly...Left out are two from # 120-a Betsey Woodward &
         Jane or Jennet Woodward and added to the list in # 121 is a
         single daughter, who died Nancy or Agnes Woodward...She does
         not show in # 120-a, however it is possible she was born
         after he died...Now for his estate divided two years after he
         died...I will have to study this further with deeds and
         Equity records.

         121-f
           ANDREW M. HANNA and RICHARD MORGAN bought heavily at the
         sale..OR it is possible that the two ANDREW HANNA & ANDREW M.
         HANNA were separate men...Often as Andrew Hannah and again as
         Andrew M. Hannah.
              Andrew M. Hannah wed Elizabeth Woodward
              John Morgan wed Jane or Jennet Woodward
         Both of these were daughters of George Woodward (# 120),
         seemingly but neither heired from the estate of Mrs.
         Elizabeth Woodward (# 121). Most of the HANNA Family of
         Fairfield moved to Green County Alabama.

         122            33-578 (FILE 33 PAGE 578)
           JAMES WOODWARD....This estate was administered (with
         consent of the widow, LEVICA WOODWARD) by WILLIAM WOODWARD
         SR....The Citation to administer was read by the clerk on 16
         May 1823...WILLIAM WOODWARD, brother of James Woodward, died
         soon after he administered...There was a De Bonis (Non
         Administration) by Hugh Stevenson & William Woodward (The son
         of James)...In this file most of the papers are missing...No
         final settlement.

         122-a          69-1053 (FILE 69, PAGE 1053)
           Mrs. LEVICA WOODWARD....23rd Jan. 1831 has herself named as
         the legal guardian of MINOR CHILDREN.
         Richard Woodward         Zachariah Woodward
         Sarah Woodward           Nancy Woodward
         James Osmond Woodward    George W. Woodward

         One son, William Woodward, was of legal age...There may have
         been other children over age 21 years...Hugh Stevenson and
         William Woodward (her son) signed the Guardianship bonds.

         122-b          70-1068 (FILE 70 PAGE 1068)
            RICHARD WOODWARD, a single man, his mother, Mrs. LEVICA
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         WOODWARD, asks that her son, ZACHARIAH WOODWARD, be named as
         Administrator and he administered on 8 Aug. 1836...A few
         months later, Zachariah Woodward had moved out of S.C. to the
         western states (Likely Alabama or Mississippi) and on 1 Jan.
         1837 Mrs. Levica Woodward asks that S. Hugh Stevenson take
         over as the Administrator...Samuel H. Stevenson then took
         over...The estate was appraised by Samuel McMullen, Thomas
         Lauderdale, Charles Bell, John C. Woodward & Richard C.
         Woodward.....The brother, WILLIAM W. WOODWARD had also by
         this time moved out of S.C. to the western lands....NO LIST
         OF HEIRS in the file...Save a notation Heirs were his mother
         and his brothers & sisters.

         122-c
           This Levica Woodward was a sister in law of Levica
         Woodward, widow of William Woodward...She was also a sister
         or a sister in law of Mrs. Elizabeth Woodward (# 121)...This
         Levica Woodward (I want to examine her deeds) sells out and
         also removes to the western lands...She is likely the Mrs.
         Levica Smith Woodward who removed to Mississippi, and aunt of
         Nathaniel Woodward (# 69).

         123            69-1058 (FILE 69 PAGE 1058)
           MISS MARGARET WOODWARD (Note she bought at sale of # 121
         and same as will # 50)...Her only heir was LEVICA WOODWARD,
         her sister in law, and widow of James Woodward (# 122).
         William Woodward, her nephew and son of James Woodward (#
         122) executed the will...I can abstract buyers at sale and
         the appraisers in case you desire more on her.

         124
           COURT of EQUITY files on estates of James Woodward and on
         his brother, William Woodward and widows, Levica Woodward and
         Levica Woodward brought suit for a land division...The Equity
         files have no Index before 1840 and are hard to find...I have
         to work patiently thru box after box until I locate the file.

         125       FAIRFIELD COUNTY 33-527 (FILE 33 PAGE 527)
           HENRY WOODWARD, received of Joseph Woodward, Executor to
         the Estate of Henry Woodward, deceased...a Negro boy named
         Jessee...signed 24 Feb. 1806 by Mrs. Elizabeth Woodward,
         widow. Question: Is this Elizabeth Woodward (#121)?

         126 QUESTION:
         Change numbers 28 from 223 and 224 to 123 and 124.

         NOTE BY ROBERT HILL Sr:  Andrea had typed the wrong numbers..He
         should have numbered the items as 123 & 124...I have made the
         corrections.

         127            36-580 (FILE 36, PAGE 580)
           WILLIAM WOODWARD... His estate (with consent of the widow,
         Levica Woodward) is administered 24 Dec. 1823 by Charles Bell
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         and the bond was signed by Thomas Bell and Robert Bankhead.
         /Wit. William Gibson...The estate was appraised by Hugh
         Stevenson, Samuel McMillan Sr., Samuel McMillan Jr., Thomas
         Bell, Robert Bell, Robert Milling J.P.....The sale was held
         on 8 Jan. 1824 and most of the personal estate was bought by
         the widow Mrs. Levica Woodward...THIS ANCESTOR of MRS. JOHN
         W. JULIAN.   In the file...  15th July 1823, I William
         Woodward, do promise to pay to William Woodward or Hugh
         Stevenson, administrator of the estate of JAMES WOODWARD,
         which I, due to illness, have to relinquish (See JAMES
         WOODWARD # 122)...Heirs widow Levica and the children and all
         Minors....I did not find list of heirs nor guardianship but
         the EQUITY is referred to...likely all in Equity.h

         127-a  Forgot to check number of this file
            MRS. LEVICA WOODWARD, widow of William Woodward...Her
         estate was administered 19 Nov. 1838 by her son, Richard C.
         Woodward and his bond signed by James Cameron and Burbage
         Woodward.

         Appraisal & sale list missing.
              Division of estate...1 March 1841...FILE 70-1073
         Each child received a full share as heirs of William Woodward
         and his widow, Levica Woodward...as follows:
         Nancy, wife of Thomas Noland
         Levios wife of Burbage Woodward Jr.
         Richard C. Woodward
         George W. Woodward
         Eleanor Woodward...also referred to as Ellen S. Woodward.
         In referring to the land, the daughter Eleanor in 1848 was
         referred to as MRS. ELEANOR S. JOHNSON...I still have to
         check deeds on all the Woodward sets.

         127-b
            1850 Census for Fairfield County...Town of Winnsboro:
         Robert T. Johnson  23, planter
         Ellen S. Johnson 26
         John S. Johnson 1 and not yet 2
         Thomas Johnson 6 months
         Joseph Bond..Hired hand.

         RICHARD C.  WOODWARD, 45, Sheriff
         Rebecca Woodward 46
         Isaac Woodward 13
         L.W. Duvall 29, born in N.C.
         Mary A. Duval 23, born Lancaster Co., SC

         David Aiken 65, b. in Ireland
         Nancy Aiken 57, b. in Ireland
         ELIZABETH WOODWARD 35, b. Winnsboro SC

         127-c
           In the files of WILLIAM WOODWARD and wife, LEVICA WOODWARD
         mention is made for tombstones...Question...Where buried? and
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         see # 102 & 102-a and add "a" to 2nd 102.

         128            FAIRFIELD COUNTY SC
           HENRY WOODWARD (Son # 48)...See his will (# 49)...Will
         executed 25 Nov. 1803 by his brother Joseph H. Woodward...His
         widow was Mrs. Elizabeth Woodward and see # 125...The Final
         settlement was made 28 Feb. 1811...Payment made to:
         Thomas Woodward, nephew
         Elizabeth Woodward, niece
         Joseph H. Woodward

          All being children of deceased brother, Thomas Woodward (See
         # 48):
         Mrs. Elizabeth Woodward, the widow.
         Payments to Reeve Freeman, seemingly brother in law.
         Payments to Joseph Woodward, a brother.
         Payment to John Woodward (a half brother).
         Payment to William Woodward..an account due to him.
         Payment to estate of William Kincaid, note due.
         Payment to estate of James Kincaid, note due.
         Payment to Sarah Riley...sister..an account.
         Payment to Samuel Murff, an account due.
         Payment to Samuel Fraser, an account due.
         Payment to Ezekiel Fraser, an account due.

         The estate was appraised by Augustine Williams, Henry Lights,
         Steven Gibson, Jacob Gibson, David Andrews, James McMorries
         J.P.

         129            DID NOT GET FILE NUMBER
           JOHN WOODWARD...See his Will (# 53)...I did not have time
         to completely check this file...Heirs were:
         Miss Margaret Woodward, sister  (See # 123)
         Jannet, wife of Richard Morgan, daughter of my deceased
         brother, George Woodward...(see # 120)..I will have to check
         further.
              children of brother, William Woodward..(see # 127)
              children of brother, James Woodward....(see # 122)
              children of brother, George Woodward...(see either # 120
                                                      or # 121)
              Richard P. Woodward, son of deceased brother, James...
              (see # 122-b)

                           Other Heirs also:
         I was unable to get this, due to closing time, to check fully
         this estate file...This John Woodward was a bachelor...This
         file needs a further and complete check..It is big with data.

         129-a
            Here seems the CLUE to Ancestry of Mrs. Bogges..Mrs.
         Johnson and Mrs. Julian...WHAT I NOW HAVE TO FIND is the
         father and the mother of this Family Group...I am inclined to
         think the father is RICHARD WOODWARD (# 106)...More study
         will be required.
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         129-b    SEE # 121-F
           Perhaps a correction here...In my data I have Jane or
         Jennet Woodward wed John Morgan...My notes seem (to indicate)
         that her husband was Richard Morgan...I will have to check
         further.

         130            FROM MY MORGAN FILES...FAIRFIELD CO.
           MRS. NANCY MORGAN  (Dtr of # 121)...Her will signed 15 Mar.
         1849. Estate divided into half
              James Morgan Jr., My son & Ex....one half
              My Grandchildren (not named).....one half
         /Wit. A. McConnell, Thomas Richardson & James H. Milling.
         Grandchildren were George Carlisle Morgan & Izy Francis
         Morgan

                        CONCLUSION
         This is one days work in Winnsboro...It may take two or three
         more days to conclude the work here before I find a
         solution...The EQUITY FILES before 1840 have no index and
         this makes it tedious...Advise me what to do now...I may have
         to try adjoining counties to Fairfield.
                                                 Andrea
                          WOODWARD MISCELLANY
         131                IMPORTANT
           I fear that none of you in this Kitty on Woodward read
         carefully Item # 130 and marked "Conclusion"...In my last
         batch of data sent, I also asked each of you to advise me
         further as to the work (for me to do?)...NONE of you advised
         me further...I did not want to go further to work in
         Winnsboro in Equity Files for these have no Index and the
         work is long and tedious and also very expensive SINCE it
         entails so much valuable time to be given over to hunting for
         data before finding it...ALSO Since none of you advised me
         further, I decided that none of you wanted me to pursue the
         work further since the cost of further work would entail much
         more money...Also it might be that work in Charleston and
         perhaps Edgefield...This would entail more expense...SINCE I
         did not hear from you, I ceased the work...NOW I have heard
         from each of you and all want the work to go further...ALSO
         Just before Easter, I was taken ill and this illness has kept
         me from work until about ten days ago...I soon leave for
         my vacation.
                     Andrea

         131-a
           The following are some data I have picked up in Virginia
         items and otherwise...I add it now to complete the notes I
         took and all from published data and none from original data.
         THIS DATA is published data on Wills and Estates...I am in
         the hope that this data may help some in this study.
                                                      Andrea
          132           SOUTHAMPTON COUNTY VIRGINIA
            SAMUEL WOODWARD....Will signed 25 March 1752, probated 14
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         May 1752...Wife, Martha Woodward & Ex. with Henry
         Johnson..Children: Reuben & Charles Woodward. He wills
         plantation to Henry Johnson. /wit.  Danuel Johnson & Jacob
         Johnson. Estate was appraised 13 Aug. 1752 by A. Washington,
         Henry Blount & Benjamin Clifton.

         132-a
            WILLIAM CRUMPLER...Will signed 7 Aug. 1761, probated 14
         Nov. 1771, Wife was Elizabeth Crumpler & Ex...Wife Ex.
         Children:
         Bessant Crumpler & Ex.             William Crumpler
         Benjamin Crumpler                  Dorothy Brock
         ELIZABETH WOODWARD                 Ann Turner
         Lucy Crumpler                      Cherry Crumpler
         Mary Crumpler /Wit. John Buskin & Edward Doyel

         132-b
            JOHN BEAL Estate...Division made 11 Feb. 1773..Heirs were:
         as follows: Abagail Beal, Joshua Beal & LYDIA, wife of SAMUEL
         WOODWARD. Divided by Lemuel Jones & James Jordon Scott.  132-
         c
            SIMON WOODWARD, Elizabeth Gurley, MARY WOODWARD all
         witness the will of James Wright, signed 25 Dec. 1761.
         END OF SOUTHAMPTON COUNTY VIRGINIA ESTATE DATA...THIS WAS
         ONCE PART OF ISLE OF WIGHT COUNTY VIRGINIA.

         132-d          MARRIAGE BONDS
         Mary Woodward, 4 Jan. 1794 to John Carr...daughter of Samuel
         Woodward Sr...Samuel Woodward Jr. signed the bond.

         Mrs. Martha Woodward, widow, 9 May 1754 to Richard Vick Sr.

         Samuel Woodward, 18 Dec. 1800 to Caty Joiner.

         Samuel Woodward, 17 Dec. 1795 to Millicent Joyner.

         William Woodward, 19 March 1796 to Elizabeth Barrow.

         This completes all Southampton County Virginia data that I
         have.
              Andrea

         133            WOODWARD MISCELLANY
           THOMAS WOODWARD....His will signed 5 Oct. 1677, probated 9
         Oct. 1677, Wife simply named as "Dear Wife"...Children & no
         surnames:
         Thomas & Ex.             Philertia & Ex...Daughter
         Katherine                Elizabeth
         Mary                     Rachel
         *John's children
         * John's children in England..Mention lands at Blackwater
         adjoining lands of John Fulgham.

         133-a          WIDOW OF THOMAS (WOODWARD) SR. (# 133)
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           MRS. KATHERINE WOODWARD...Her will signed 17 April 1684,
         probated 9 June 1684..Children but no surnames:
         John                Philarita        N.B. The son Thomas Jr.
         Elizabeth           Mary             is not named.
         Katherine           Rachel

         My grand son, not yet christened, son of Philarita Giles.
         /Wit. John Giles & Nicholas Fulgham.

         133-b
           The Inventory of THOMAS WOODWARD SR. presented by KATHERINE
         WOODWARD, the relict and daughter. Philarita Woodward and the
         son, Thomas Jr...presented 9 Aug. 1678.
              Division of Estate 9 Dec. 1681
         Mrs. Katherine Woodward, widow...Her part.
         Thomas Woodward, son...his part.
         Philarita Giles, daughter...her part.
         The children..their parts.
         Divided by Thomas Green, Daniel Long, James Tullaugh, Richard
         Wilkinson.

         133-c          SON OF # 133 & 133-a
           THOMAS WOODWARD JR....His estate admst. 8th?? Feb. 1680 by
         his brother, John Woodward, at the request of the mother,
         Mrs. Katherine Woodward...Bond signed by Nicholas Fulgham &
         John Whitley...His heirs were his brother, mother & sisters.

         133-d
            GEORGE WOODWARD with John Jennings and Karby Kigan witness
         the will of George Hardy signed 16 March 1654...Here is a
         George Woodward as early as 1654.
                                          Andrea

         133-e
           DOROTHY WOODWARD...Grant of 100 acres land to her 29 Aug.
         1633.

         133-f
           HENRY WOODWARD aged 30 in 1625 shows earlier in Census of
         1623. Later we find a deed made by Francis Morrison signed 5
         April 1662 to John Askew...200 acres land patented to HENRY
         WOODWARD who died without heirs.

         133-g          BODDIE (PAGES 108-109)

         NOTE BY ROBERT HILL Sr: This is probably his book "Southside
         Virginia Families."

           THOMAS WOODWARD, Assay Master of the Mint, fled from
         England to Isle of Wight County Virginia in 1649...He never
         returned to England..He became surveyor (Official) for North
         Carolina...His son, JOHN WOODWARD, died in 1665 sic...
         Evidently another child was born and named John for see #
         133-c and also 133-a...Page 130..THOMAS WOODWARD did not long
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         remain in N.C...He was born 1600 and died 1677 leaving a son
         THOMAS & daughters: Katherine, Elizabeth, Mary, Rachel &
         Philarita, who wed John Giles.

         133-i          BODDIE PAGE 183
           PETER WOODWARD and his wife, Margaret Woodward, had the
         following children registered in Newport Parish:

         Margaret Woodward born 15 Jan. 1737/38
         Peter Woodward Jr., born 27 March 1736
         Rebecca Wiles Woodward, born 29 Dec. 1739.

                           WOODWARD MISCELLANY

         134            WESTMORELAND COUNTY VIRGINIA ...page 73
           MRS. ELIZABETH TUCKER...Her will signed 3 May 1727 and
         probated October Court 1723...Children:

         MARY WOODWARD...Ex is son in law "JOSEPH WOODWARD."
         Sarah Minor                   Rebecca Tucker
         Martha Tucker                 Joseph Tucker *
         John Tucker *                 Henry Tucker *
         * The sons have no surnames and I inadvertently typed TUCKER
         as surnames......There is a possibility that some may have
         been Woodward, since "My son in law Joseph Woodward, is Ex."
         I presumed as I typed he was husband of Mary Woodward and
         likely was.
                    Andrea

         135           ELBERT COUNTY GEORGIA
           NEHEMIAH HOWARD in his will signed 4 Jan. 1798 names one
         child as MARY WOODWARD...Wife was Ede Howard..Mentions lands
         in S.C.

         NOTE BY ROBERT HILL Sr: See my notes in # 78...MARY HOWARD was
         the wife of Thomas Woodward, the first born child of the
         Regulator and his 2nd wife Elizabeth Stokes Mays (see #
         77). Mary Howard & her husband, Thomas Woodward,  were
         parents of General Thomas Simpson Woodward.

         135-a
            ROBERT WOODWARD with John Trimble witness a deed signed 5
         Sept. 1791 when Moses Trimble and wife, Katherine Trimble
         sell land.

         136    CONCORD CHURCH IN FAIRFIELD CO. S.C., IN TOWN OF
                              WOODWARD S.C.
                            (tombstones)
         William Barrett Woodward/ 31 July 1846/ 26 May 1916/ His
         wife/ Lella Brice/ 7 May 1854/ 7 Nov. 1902.
         Joe J. Woodward /26 April 1876/ 22 March 1921
         This church is located at Woodward S.C.

         (Note by Robert Hill Sr: William Barrett Woodward ties into the
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         Regulator's family line.

         137
           Mrs. Willie 5/8 (?) Smith, Pearson, Georgia nee Mary Malone
         has written to me her WOODARD & WOODWARD line which came from
         S.C. to Georgia...Some notes by her:  Land Grants

         Mills Woodward, 700 acres in Emanuel Co., Ga. 19 Nov. 1814.
         Mills Woodward, 643 acres in Emanuel Co., Ga. 24 Aug. 1814.
         Mills Woodward, 300 acres in Emanuel Co., Ga. 10 Dec. 1821.

         137-a
           MILLS WOODWARD...His estate 11 June 1825 sold to the
         following heirs for division.
              William Nabt        Benjamin Warren
              M. Woodward         Mary Woodward
         And others...Mention is made of will made by Mills Woodward.

         137-b          MARRIAGE BONDS, LAURENS CO., GEORGIA
             William Woodward    5 July 1814 to Nancy Warren
             Polly Woodward__________1814 to Reuben Warren
         Mrs. 5/8 Smith thinks this is part of her family.

         138            FURTHER DATA BY MRS. SMITH
           AMBROSE WOODWARD...Emanuel Co., Ga...School Record.
         Enrolled from 4 Feb. 1840 to 4 June 1840..Free School ....
         Mother listed as MRS. MARY WOODWARD...This is the great
         grandfather of Mrs. Mary Malone Smith...Ambrose Woodard had
         the following brothers and sisters known to Mrs. Smith.
         William Majors Woodard m. Nancy Martin or Nancy Warren.
         Walthia Woodard m. _________Warren.
         Ambrose Woodard m. Eliza _________.

         These three children are supposed to be minor children of Mr.
         MILLEDGE WOODARD, who was son of MILLS WOODWARD....Mrs. 5/8
         Smith wants me to work further on this Woodard-Woodward line
         of hers. She is also to send me some data.

         139
           AGAIN I AM asking each of you to notify me as to what you
         want me to do further on this Woodward study...Mrs. Bogges
         sent me a card in May..Mrs. Julian called me long distance in
         May and Mrs. Johnson wrote and sent me further data.
                                                             Andrea
                        WOODWARD REVOLUTION
         140
           The following are brief abstracts of the Revolutionary
         Files in South Carolina Archives in Columbia, S.C.  I have
         not copied in full..Merely the pertinent data.
                                                       Andrea

         141            MUSTER ROLL ...CAPTAIN THOMAS WOODWARD
           This is the complete muster roll of the Company of Captain
         THOMAS WOODWARD (The Regulator) dated 7 August 1775 at
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         Mineral Springs near the Congaree River...Ages given only for
         Woodward men..(Andrea).
         CAPT. THOMAS WOODWARD  AGE 46      1ST Lt. Richard Wynne
         2nd Lt. JOHN WOODWARD  AGE 28      Sgt. John Smith
         Sgt. William Boyd                  Drummer..William Wilson
         Drummer..John Owens
             Rest of men are Privates
             James Pickett                  James Owens
             John Carr                      John Carson
             John Henderson                 Daniel Oaks
             Francis Henderson              William Henderson
             Jacob Frazier                  Henry Wimpey
             BENJAMIN MAY                   Charnal Durham
             James Anderson                 William Rayford
             Matthew Raiford                Benjamin McGraw
             Augustine Hancock              William Owens
             John McDonald                  Francis McDonald
             Thomas Guther                  Pritchett Stone
             John Jacobs                    Prtichett Stone (again)
             Joseph Owens                   John Bull
             Edward McGraw                  Thomas Willingham
             William Dugans                 Benjamin Mitchell

         Captain Thomas Woodward shows in other places in the files in
         the S.C. State Archives.  (Note by Robert Hill Sr: This Captain
         Woodward WAS Thomas (The Regulator) Woodward, my 5th great
         grandfather. His age of 46 shows a birth in 1729).

         142            CHERAW DISTRICT S.C.
           THOMAS WOODWARD...Private for 35 days...This claim sworn to
         17 May 1782 before Thomas Powe, J.P....Pay claim to Benjamin
         Wright.

         143            CAMDEN DISTRICT S.C.
           THOMAS WOODWARD of Camden District...Supplies furnished by
         him. Receipts for same signed by General Francis Marion..This
         claim was presented by William Davis as Executor for the
         estate of Thomas Woodward...(See # 42)..David Rogers, J.P....
         Somebody tried to counterfeit this claim and get paid
         twice....the legal heirs had to sue to recover.

         144
           SAMUEL WOODWARD by his X mark...Furnished beef and supplies
         for the Regiment of Colonel Myddleton (Middleton) and Lt.
         John Croft signed the receipt for the beef...This claim was
         sworn to 19 Nov. 1783 before William Meyer, J.P. and
         witnessed by Robert Thompson...The interest was paid to John
         Bryson and to Daniel Ford.
                        COMMENT
         I have been unable to place this man as to his residence...He
         could have been a resident of either Richland or of Barnwell
         Counties (S.C.).
                           Andrea
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         145-a
            SIMON WOODWARD....Indent payment # K-131...His file has
         been lost...Only the Indent receipt remains.

         145-b
            RICHARD WOODWARD...Indent Receipt # C-49...His file has
         been lost and only the indent stub remains.

         146            SAMUEL NESMITH FILE
           SAMUEL NESMITH in applying for his pay indent which was
         witnessed by John Baxter of Williamsburg County S.C....On 14
         Dec. 1785 Samuel Nesmith states "Deliver my indent to CAPTAIN
         JOSEPH WOODWARD."

         147            FAIRFIELD COUNTY S.C.
           WILLIAM WOODWARD....His claim for service as a Private in
         1781 for 26 days and also for 60 days and tours of duty under
         Colonel Thomas Taylor & General Richard Winn...17 Jan. 1784
         in Camden District S.C. William Woodward swears to this claim
         before Thomas Baker, J.P. and John Harbit, J.P....He sold his
         Indent to Richard Winn.  (Note by R. Hill Sr:  I think this was
         my 4th great grandfather, Rev. William Woodward, son of the
         Regulator).

         148            GEORGETOWN DISTRICT S.C.
           JAMES WOODWARD...His claim for 123 days of service at
         White's Bridge in 1779...This claim was sworn to in
         Georgetown District on 15 Dec. 1779 before Benjamin Gause,
         J.P.

         148-a          PERHAPS SAME MAN AS # 148
           JAMES WOODWARD...However he signs his name as WOODWARD but
         claim file as WOODARD....97 days of service in Duty done at
         Georgetown...This claim was sworn to 14 Aug. 1783 before John
         Baxter, J.P.....To me it seems the same signature for # 148
         and for 148-a.

         149            FAIRFIELD COUNTY S.C.
           BURBAGE WOODWARD....Claim for 70 days of service as a
         Private under Lt. John Cameron on a tour to Orangeburg in
         1781...Also for a tour of duty under Lt. Kincaid in 1782 to
         the FOUR HOLES SWAMP...This claim was sworn to 20 Jan. 1784
         in Camden District before John Winn, J.P....Claim was
         certified 1 March 1785.

         150            FAIRFIELD COUNTY S.C.
           MR. JOHN WOODWARD....For supplies furnished and in the file
         are receipts for the supplies furnished to the following:
              William Ross        James Cantey        Jo. Brown
              Robert Farquson     Capt. James Howe    Wm. Miles
              Lt. Wm. Miller

         Payment for these supplies were made to John Irick...Also for
         service as a private as a horseman under Col. Thomas Taylor
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         on his expedition to the Eutaws...Also for service as a wagon

         master on the expedition to the FOUR HOLES SWAMP under
         General William Henderson...This service was certified by
         Captain William Roberston of Camden District on 23 June 1784
         before Thomas baker, J.P.

         150-a
            CAPTAIN JOHN WOODWARD...Whether this is the same man above
         I do not know...There is no separate file for Captain John
         Woodward but he is referred to in the file above # 150 as
         Captain and John Byrd in his file states "I served under
         CAPTAIN JOHN WOODWARD."

         NOTE BY ROBERT HILL Sr: This appears to be John Woodward (see #
         28-g & # 111) who was a Captain after his father's death. He
         was the oldest Child of Thomas (Regulator) Woodward.  His
         wife was Esther McDonald.

         150-b         FAIRFIELD COUNTY S.C.
            JOHN WOODWARD as a soldier and private under Captain Gray
         and Col. David Hopkins from the 1st day of Feb. 1782 to the
         3rd day of April 1782...Pay to and sworn to before..(not
         legible) This man does not seem same as John in # 150.

         150-c          CAMDEN DISTRICT
            JOHN WOODWARD as a private and his claim sworn to 7 Feb.
         1784 before John Buchannan J.P.....This service was certified
         by Lt. Joseph Cameron and for duty done at Orangeburg under
         Lt. Cameron...This may be same man as # 150...however he does
         not use the same script...This John Woodward made his claim
         payable to Charles Wheeler and witnessed by Thomas
         Buffington...I do know that Wheeler lived in what is now
         Barnwell Co., S.C.

         151            FAIRFIELD COUNTY S.C.
           William Cato of Fairfield County in his claim states "I
         served under Captain Thomas Woodward"  Many cross references
         show for Captain Thomas Woodward.

         NOTE BY ROBERT HILL Sr:  Captain Thomas Woodward was the same
         Thomas Woodward, known as the Regulator.  I think it
         important here to understand how the name Regulator came
         about...It was because Thomas Woodward was one of the
         founders and leaders of the "Regulator Movement" in the early
         1760's in S.C.

         The "Regulators" were a group of citizens in the interior
         sections of S.C. that tried to get law and order restored to
         that part of the province...and finally after the official
         government failed to accomplish this...took matters into
         their hands and with "hard, swift punishment" succeeded in
         restoring peace and tranquility to there areas of the
         province of S.C.  Thomas Woodward was a leader and for that
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         reasons became known as Thomas "The Regulator" Woodward.

         152            NOTE # 24 and # 42
           THOMAS WOODWARD of Kershaw County...was a Baptist and as
         shown in many files of Baptist Data...However the CAPTAIN
         THOMAS WOODWARD of Fairfield County was a member of the
         Episcopal Church, as shown by a recently found journal of the
         Reverend Charles Woodmason.
              I have visited and preached at the homes of these back
         country Anglicans to wit.
              THOMAS WOODWARD on Broad River (The Regulator)
              Thomas Edgehill on Saluda River
              John Lee near Catawba Nation
              Lewis People on Little Lynch's Creek
              Thomas Kennerly on Great Salida River

         This is made in a report to the Bishop of London.

         NOTE BY ROBERT HILL Sr: The Reverend Charles Woodmason was a
         very loyal and sympathetic supporter of the Regulators.

         153            FAIRFIELD COUNTY S.C.
           THOMAS WOODWARD, Benjamin Hart, John Scott, Moses Kirkland,
         all sign in 1768 a petition to the King to allow a parcel of
         Bibles, Common Prayer Books & Devotional Tracts to be sent to
         the Anglican meeting places in the Back Country (interior
         area of S.C.).

         154            FAIRFIELD COUNTY   1828 (CENSUS)
         WIDOW G. Woodward 5        William Woodward  3
         Isaac Woodward    4        John Woodward  6
         Levisa Woodward   8        John Woodward 2
         Nathaniel Woodward 4       Osmund Woodward 7
         Richard Woodward 3         Randal Woodward 7
         Richard Woodward Sr. 6     George Woodward 3

         All of these show up in the 1828 Census as "Heads of
         Households" in Fairfield County and with the number in each
         family listed.

         155            WOODWARD CEMETERY    SEE # 106
           A descendent of STEPHEN NOLAN also as Nowlen & Knowlen (I
         typed as Mowlen in # 106 so please change to Nowlen) was in
         Columbia recently and made a journey to Fairfield County in
         search of the Nolen Family Graveyard...He did not find it but
         told me that he ran into an old WOODWARD GRAVEYARD with many
         old stones...This he told me was northwest of Winnsboro and
         you take the road to Newberry from Winnsboro and travel out
         about 7 miles to "Lebanon Church" and then take a dirt road
         for a few miles north and then turn to a farm (Said to
         inquire) that has in a pine field, an old Woodward Graveyard.
         This is very likely the graveyard we need...However since I
         have no auto, I could not go to visit this old graveyard.
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